
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 22, 1975 

U.S. SEXATE, 
SELECT COMMITTEE To STAY GOVERSNEXTM, OPERATIONS 

WITH RESPECT TO IXTELL~GEXCE ACTIKTIES, 
Washisgton, D.C. 

The. committee met,, pursuant to notice, at lo:08 a.m., in room 318, 
Russell Senate Office Building, Sena,tor Frank Church (chairman) 
presiding. 

Present: Senators Church, Mondale, Huddleston, Hart of Colorado, 
Goldwater! Jlathias? and Schweiker. 

Also present: William G. Miller, staff director; Frederick A. 0. 
Schwarz, Jr., chief counsel; and Curtis R. Smothers, counsel to the 
minority. 

The CIMIRXAS. The hearing will please come to order. 
Today the commibtee continues its invest.igation of the mail-opening 

program, endeavoring to determine in depth how it happened that for 
20 years mail was opened by the CIA and the FBI, contrary to ,the 
la& of the United States. 

Yesterday, we heard from members of the Inspector General’s Office 
of the CIA? an office that conducted periodic reviews of this program 
and an office which concluded that it. was of marginal value, in terms 
of the intelligence collecting, so much so that it was recommended to 
the Agenc,y, finally, that the program either be discontinued or turned 
over to t.he FBI. There was little expression of concern about its 
illegality, but there was evident fear that the exposure of the program 
would make for a considerable embarrassment to the CIA. On that 
basis, it was explained, particularly in the wake of Watergate, the 
recommendation was made that. the ‘CIA discontinue a program that 
had had litt.le intelligence benefit. 

Today, we are continuing to pursue the matter by asking former 
Postmasters General of the United States what they were told about 
the program and to what, extent. they approved it since it was their 
responsibility under the law to protect the integrity of the land. 

For that purpose, our first witnesses are t.hree former Post,masters 
General, Mr. J. Edward Day, Mr. John ,4. Gronouski, and Mr. Win- 
ton ?tL. Rlount. 

I shall ask all three to come forward and sit as a panel for purposes 
of questioning. If you gentlemen will do that now. Please remain 
standing and take the oath. 

Do you and each of you solemnly swear t.hat, all of the testimony 
you will give in this proceeding will be the truth, the whole truth and 
nothing but the truth, so help you God? 

Mr. DAY. I do. 
Mr. GRONOUSKI. I do. 
Jfr. BLOUST. I do. 
The CHAIRMAS. Thank you very much. 
Mr. Schwarz will commence the questioning. 

(41) 



42 

TESTIMONY OF J. EDWARD DAY, FORMER POSTMASTER QENERAL, 
ACCOMPANIED BY JAMES F. REILLY, SR., COUNSEL; JOHN A. GRO- 
NOUSKI, FORMER POSTMASTER QENERAL; WINTON M. BLOUNT, 
FORMER POSTMASTER GENERAL, ACCOMPANIED BY DOUGLAS 
ARANT, COUNSEL 

Mr. SCHWARZ. Are any of you gentlemen accompanied by counsel ‘1 
Mr. DAY. Yes ; I am, by Mr. James F. Reilly. 
Mr. RLOUNT. I am, by Mr. Douglas Arant. 
Mr. GRONOUSKI. I am not. 
Mr. SCHU’ARZ. Before questioning these particular people, may I call 

the committee’s at,tention to a chart which is headed, “Postmasters 
General,” and which sets forth the names and dates in offices of all of 
the Postmasters General from the commencement of this program to 
date, indicating in the right-hand column whether or not there is any 
evidence whatsoever, or any claim on behalf of either the CIA or the 
FBI, that anything was disclosed [exhibit 6 ‘1. 

Mr. Summerfield, of course, is dead. We will deal with the subject 
of disclosure and what. kind of disclosure was made to him when Mr. 
Helms testifies. 

Mr. Day is here as a witness. Mr. Gronouski, who was not informed, 
is here as a witness. Mr. O’Brien and Mr. Watson have testified they 
were not informed, and there was no claim made that they were in- 
formed. Mr. Blount, of course, is here as a witness. And Mr. Klassen, 
who succeeded him, was not informed, and there is no claim made that 
he was informed. 

I am going to start with Mr. Gronouski. 
The CHAIRMAN. First of all, Mr. Schwarz, is this summary based 

upon the testimony that has heretofore been obtained in executive 
session 8 

Mr. SCHWAKZ. The testimony and the documents, yes. 
The CHAIRMAN. So that this summarization can be distributed to 

the ress! 
-2,zp I r. SCHWARZ. It can be and has been. 
The CHAIRMAN. And can be authenticated as based upon sworn 

testimony in executive hearings 1 
Mr. SCHWARZ. Yes. Moreover, in every case where it says “not in- 

formed,” there is no claim made by either the CIA or the FBI that the 
persons so named were informed. 

Mr. Gronouski, I am going to start with you and explain why you 
are here, even though you were not informed, because you have an 
important story to tell the committee. 

YOU were Postmaster General in the period 1963 through when? 
Mr. GRONOKTSKI. November of 1965. 
Mr. SCHWARZ. Now, during the time you were Postmaster General, 

was there an investigation into generally the subject of privacy by a 
Senate subcommittee, headed by Senator Edward V. Long of 
Missouri ? 

Mr. GROXOUSKI. Yes. ‘I’he Long committee on mail coverage. 
Mr. SCHWARZ. And in connection wit.h that, did you submit infor- 

mat,ion to the Long committee on the subject of mail ? 
Mr. GRONOUSKI. Yes, I did. 

1 See p. 202. 
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JIr. SCIIWARZ. What did you tell them ? 
Mr. GROXOUSKI. Well, after reading the Rockefeller Commission 

report and noticing my name mentioned, I tried to figure out, what 
test,imony I had given before the Long committee, because my recol- 
lection was that I had never testified before, the Long committee. But 
I got out some of those old hearings and I found a couple of letters 
that I had submitted and were in the record. 

One letter had to do with explaining a relationship that had existed 
by law with the IRS, having to do with the treatment of mail as per- 
sonal property which could be seized by the IRS at the time they had 
a judgment against, a taxpayer ~110 had not paid his taxes. I discovered 
this, and Lord knows I did not remember this from my recollection. 
I reread the letter of August of 1964, which was about 6 or 8 months 
before the Long committee was in existence, that developed this 
question. 

This disturbed me no end, beca,nse of the main thing that one who 
gets involved with the Postal Service feels the bottom line is the sanc- 
tity of the mail, both in terms of no interruption of delivery and open- 
ing the mail. And obviously this was a violation. It was an illegal viola- 
tion of what I thought was fundamental. So I wrote a letter to the 
Long committee, recommending-oh, I informed them that on notic- 
ing t.hat and learning of this. in August of 1964, I called Doug Dillon, 
who was then Secretary of the Treasury, and we personally agreed to 
put in-to stop the practice. And, subsequently, Joe Bower agreed on 
this, too. 

But this, of course, was a personal agreement, and there was a law 
still on the books which made it. legal for this to happen. So in this 
lett.er, I recommended to the Long committee that they change the 
st’atute to prohibit the treatment of mail as personal property subject 
to IRS lien. I can’t for the life of me remember what they did about it, 
but I offered them the use of two Post Office attorneys to help them 
draft legislation. 

The other letter had to do with my refusal to submit to the Long 
committee a list of all of the mail covers that had occurred over the 
last 2 years. ,\nd I explained the reason for that refusal that was re- 
lated to the fact that so many people who had been subject to mail 
covers were totally innocent of any concern by a Government agency. 

Mr. SCHWARZ. When you say “mail corer”, that is the examination 
of the exterior of an envelope and not the opening of it 1: 

Mr. GRONOUSKI. That’s right.. And in that letter I specifically defined 
mail cover, and it is the only item that I think the CIA memorandum 
could have referred to that I know of. I explained that! very clearly, 
it was not delaying the mail, looking only on the outside, recording 
and not opening the mail or delaying it. 

I might say, also, I explained how a year earlier, I had been con- 
cerned about mail covers also and had put in very tight re,&rictions 
on the authorizations of nmil covers. That is my recollection. 

Mr. SC~VARZ. In any event, in t.hat letter, which was largely about 
the subject of mail coverage, you indicated that there was no mail 
opening program going on 1 

Mr. GROSOUSKI. That’s right. I flatly stated there was not. 
Mr. Scrrw.~~z. And that you did not know about mail openings, did 

you z 
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Mr. GRONOKJSKI. I did not know about it. 
Mr. SCIIWARZ. All right. 
Mr. GROXOUSKI. Except I was not sure in August of 1964 what 

the lien by t.he IRS meant. It did stop t.he mail, because it prevented 
the delivery to the addressee, and I had some presupposition that t.hey 
stopped it and took it to collect t.axes. They probably hope.d that there 
was some money in it., and t,hat very much concerned me, and that’s 
when I put a stop to it,. 

The CHAIRMAN. But did you know during that period that the CIA 
was busily engaged in opening the mail 1 

Mr. GRONOCSKI. I did not. 
The CHAIRMAN. Your only concern, then, was with what you knew 

about the IRS ? That was legal at the time, and you recommended that 
the law be changed ? 

Mr. GRONOUSKI. And administrat.ively the practice was cha.nged 
immediately. 

The CHAIRMAX. And you recommended a change in the law that 
would make it illegal, and within your Department you ordered ad- 
nlinistratire changes that stopped the practice? 

Mr. GR~SOITSKI~ An agreement with the Treasury Department. 
Mr. SCIW~RZ. Mr. Chairman, at this point I would like to read 

into the record from exhibit 7,’ what the CIA subsequently said about 
Mr. Gronouski, in a memorandum for the files dated april 23, 1965. 
This supports your view, Xr. Gronouski. It does not. change anything. 
It is interesting in what it shows about the attit.ude of t,he CIA. 

Reading from paragraph 7 into the record : 
Mr. Karamessines brought up the question of what persons outside the Agency 

have been briefed as to the actual operations of HTLINGUAL. He was told that, 
at the present time, there were no officials in the post office or elsewhere in the 
Government who had been so briefed. Karamessines suggested that consideration 
be given to possibly briefing Postmaster General Gronouski after the [Long] 
subcommittee activity has been discontinued. The writer stated that he would 
recommend against this in view of various statements by Gronouski before 
the Long subcommittee. Karamessines agreed with this thought and suggested 
that, in his opinion, the President would be more inclined to go along with the 
idea of the operation. 

And we are going to take that up with Mr. Helms this afternoon, 
that part of the document. 

Well. Mr. Gronouski. unless you have got something further to say 
about your reaction to the t.reat,ment you now know you received, I am 
going t.o pass to the other witnesses. 

Mr. GROXOUSKI. I just wanted to add that when this news broke, I 
thought it was incredible that a person in a top position of responsi- 
bilit? in Government in an agency should have something of this sort 
that, 1s very illegal going on wit.hm h,is own agency and did not know 
about it. It is not that I did not t.ry to know about these things. I think 
it. is incumbent upon a.nybody at the top office to try to know every- 
thing t,hat goes on in his organization. 

And to that effect, long before the Long committee, I asked Mr. 
Montague a.nd also my information officer, Ira Kappenstein, to very 
carefully investigate the mail cover and any other associated problems 
that we had, all the way from pornography to what have you, to find 

’ See p. 203. 
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out what was going on, what‘ we did, a.nd whether it was in conformity, 
not only with the law-, but in good administrative practice. 

L4nd I think it. is incredible that I could have held t,hat office for 
only the short time of 21/, years, in the middle then-during an investi- 
gation of mail coverage, that no how, no way did any information 
seep up to me. And I think that is ‘a Tery serious concern. 

The C~~AI~~M.~N. I do, too. 
Mr. Scmva~z. Mr. Day, when did you hold the position of Post- 

master General ? 
Mr. Dar. January 21, 1961, until Sugust 9, 1963. 
Mr. ScrrwZ\Rz. Was there a time when Mr. Helms and Mr. Roosevelt 

and Director Dulles came to visit with you about the subject of CIA 
and mail ? 

Mr. DAY. They came to visit me, yes, on February 15, 1961, about 
3 we.eks after I took office. 

Mr. SCHWARZ. All right. There is a document in your book which 
is exhibit 8,l dated February l&1961, the day after- 

Mr. DAY. I don’t have any book of that kind. 
Mr. SCHWARZ. Mr. Blount can show it t.o you. It is right there. This 

is a CIA document, written by Mr. Helms, reflecting the fact of the 
meeting and stating in the second sentence of the paragraph, “We gave 
him the background, development, and current status, withholding no 
relevant details.” 

To your recollection, were you told that the CL4 was opening mail 
in Sew York City ? 

Mr. DAY. R’o. 
Mr. Scrrm~nz. Do you deny that you were told that, or is it simply 

that yell do not recollect it ? 
Mr. D..ir. I don’t recollect it. And I do have several very distinct 

recollections of that meeting, which are inconsistent with this mem- 
orandum of Jlr. Helms. 

These three gentlemen came to see me. I knew Mr. Roosevelt from 
past’ years. Mr. Dulles, after some preliminary visiting and so on, said 
that he wanted to tell me something very secret, and I said, “DO I have 
to know about it?” And he was somewhat taken aback by that. And 
he said no. 

I said my experience is that where there is somet.hing that is very 
secret, it is likely to leak out, and anybody that knew about it is likely 
to be suspected of h,aving been part of leaking it out, so I would rather 
not know anything about it. 

What additional things were said in connection with him building 
up to that, I don’t know. But I am sure, from my recollection of that 
meeting, and, actually, from other things in your own record, that I 
was not, told anything about opening mall. 

Mr. Scmvanz. What are the other things you refer to? 
Mr. Dal-. Well, for example, there is the memorandum, I believe 

you read part of it, that was prepared by the CIA st.aff before they 
ca.me to see me. They really were laying for me. I barely found out 
where my office was when they came over there. It said, if the Post- 
master General asks if any mail is being opened, tell him that it is 
being opened. Well, obviously, I didn’t ask them if any mail was 
being opened. 
-- 

1See p. 205. 
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-41~0, there is the subsequent memorandum that indicates that I was 
not told. I don’t know what that subsequent memorandum said spe- 
cifically, because I have not had an opportunity to see it. 

Also, I can’t see, thinking back on t.his situation, why ‘I would SO 
clearly recall that I told them that I did not want to know about this 
if they had already told me about it. It doesn’t make sense. As far 
as Mr. Helms’ statement that I said I did not want to be told the 
details, what are the det.ails? If they had said t’hey were opening mail, 
that they were opening mail. that would have been the details. 

Mr. SCHWARZ. So the thrust of your testimony-and this is based, 
you say, upon a clear recollection-is that Mr. Dulles said it was highly 
sensitive or secret,. You said, “I am worried about leaks. And, there- 
fore,” you said “please do not tell me.” 

Mr. DAY. Correct. 
Mr. SCHWARZ. Even though you knew it was a matter which signifi- 

cantly concerned the Department, for which you were responsible? 
Mr. DAY. Of course. 
Mr. SCHWARZ. All right. One further question to you, Mr. Day. Did 

the FBI ever tell you they were opening mail ? 
Mr. DAY. No. 
Mr. SCHWARZ. Did they ever discuss with you the subject of mail 

covers 1 
Mr. DAY. They may have. 911 kinds of important people seemed to 

come to see me or send for me immediately after I was appointed. Mr. 
Hoover came over and had lunch with me. 

As I recall that conversation, it was largely about the importance of 
a close working relationship between the Postal Inspection Service 
and t,he FBI and law enforcement activities in general. It is conceiv- 
able he might have mentioned that. I have no recolIection of it. I 
doubt very seriously if I knew what a mail cover was until some weeks 
after I took office. 

Mr. SCHWARZ. You mean he came in and he also just told you some- 
thing, and you did not find out what he was talking about? 

Mr. DAY. No; he was talking-it was a meeting m which he wanted 
to be sure that I was sympathetic with the cooperative activities be- 
tween the Postal Inspection Service and the, FBI and wanted to see 
that I had the right attitude, which I did, about working with them 
cooperatively on their law enforcement efforts. And as I say, I don’t 
recall him saying anything about mail covers. I can? say defimtely that 
he didn’t, and if he did mention it in passing, I probably didn’t even 
know what he was referring to. 

Mr. SCHWARZ. All right,. Mr. Blount, did you ever have a meeting 
with Mr. Helms in which the subject of a CL4 project relating to the 
mails was discussed ? 

Mr. BLOUNT. Yes, I did. 
Mr. SCHWARZ. Did that meeting t.ake place in June of 1971? 
Mr. BLOUNT. Yes, it. did. 
Mr. SCIIU’ARZ. What did Mr. Helms tell you? 
Mr. BLOUXT. Well, as I recall, Mr. Helms explained to me about a 

project that he told me had been going on for a great number of 
years. I don’t know whether he said 15 years or what, but there was 
some indication in my mind t.hat this had been going on for at least 15 
years, that it was an ongoing project. It was a project of great sensitiv- 
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ity and great importance to the national security of this country a&l 
that he wanted to inform me about it. 

I don’t recall this being a very long meeting. I guess my memory 
is not as good as JIr. Day’s but this was over 4 years ago., as far as I 
was concerned, and I hadn’t thought much about this until all of this 
matter came up this spring. I hadn’t thought at all about it. 

But my best recollection is, he told me this was a project in which 
the Post Office was cooperating with the CIA, that there were a 
couple of postal employees in New York City that I believe he told 
me were the only ones who really were involved or knew about this 
project, that the way in which it operated was that the postal em- 
ployees would remove from the mail stream letters going to the Soviet 
Union and give it to two or three CIA employees, and whatever they 
did with it., it was reintroduced into the mail stream the next day. 
That% about the ending of my recollection. 

Mr. SCHWARZ. Did you not ask them what they did with it? 
Mr. BLOUNT. No, I don’t recall doing that. 
Mr. SCHWARZ. Did he not tell you what they did with it? Is it not a 

fact that he told you that the CIA was opening the mail in New York 
City ? 

Mr. BLOUNT. Not to my recoll&ion. 
Mr. SCHWARZ. Well, now, did you not raise with him the question of 

legality ? 
Mr. BLOUXT. Yes, I did. 
Mr. SCIIWARZ. Why would you have raised the question of legality 

with him unless he had told you that the CIA was opening the mail 
in New York City? 

Mr. BLOUNT. Well, I think, Mr. Schwarz, this is a perfectly legiti- 
mate and obvious thing for a prudent man to do. 

Mr. SCHWARZ. But as you describe it, he just came in ,and gave you a 
vague descript,ion. I don’t understand why, on the basis of your de- 
script.ion of the conversation, there would have been any reason to 
raise the question of legality, which you admit you did do. 

Mr. BLOUNT. Well, maybe you don’t, but I do. 
Mr. Smwa~z. What is the reason ! 
Mr. BLOVST. Well, just let me tell you. Mr. Helms was the Director 

of the CIA. He is the man who had and continues to yield long ,and 
dist.inguished service to this count.ry. I had great respect for him and 
have great respect for him. He was telling me about a matter, a secret 
matter, of great importance to this country. I don’t recall talking 
very much about the details about it.. I didn’t, ask him what they were 
doing. 

I asked him-1 raised the question of legality. I raised the question of 
bringing. as I recall, the General Counsel of the Post Office Depart- 
ment into the meeting, and as I recall, Mr. Helms said that the 
Attorney General was going to be involved in the case. 

I have seen from testimony by Mr. Helms and documents that he 
had seen the Attorney General prior to the meeting with me, and I 
have no quarrel wi’ith that. I had assumed he was going to see the 
Attorney General, but if he had seen the Attorney General, well, I 
find it even more logical. and that the Attorney General had no prob- 
lem with that as far as the legality was concerned, and I thought then 
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it was a project that I wanted to give full cooperation with the CIA 
within the limits of the law. 

Mr. SCHWARZ. Well, it doesn’t make any sense to me, but you have 
your explanation on the record. I don% see, according to your explana- 
tion of the conversation, why there is any reason to discuss legality, 
which you agree was discussed. 

Mr. Chairman, I do not have anything further. 
Senator MONDALE [presiding]. Mr. Smothers? 
Mr. SBXOTHERS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Just briefly, back to Mr. Day, if we might, for starters. 
Mr. Day, at the time Mr. Dulles and Mr. Helms came to see YOU, 

you have a pretty clear recollection of your indication that you did 
not want to be made privy to secret matters that might leak. DO YOU 
have any other recollect,ion of the subject of that conversation? 

Mr. DAY. No, I don’t recall the subject of that conversation. There 
was some purely social talk because of the fact that I had known Mr. 
Koosevelt during Navy days, and I don’t recall the specific statements 
that were made. It is not surprising to me because I am more inclined 
to remember things about people and my reactions to them than I am 
to remember all of t.he details of some conversation, and I can recall 
that very distinctly, my reaction to their approach. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. Is it your recollection that this visit was a social 
call? 

Mr. DAY. Oh, no, of course not. 
Mr. SMOTHERS. I am a little concerned. The Director of t.he CIA 

comes out to chat with you about a matter of some importance to your 
Department, and all you recollect from that is that you asked him not 
to tell you about it Z 

Mr. DAY. That is correct. And I have explained previously why 
that is true. I would do it exactly the same way if I were doing it today. 
I figured then that the CIA had their own lines of authority and their 
own responsibilities, and I had absolutely no control over them, any 
more than I did over the Air Force. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. Even if they were opening mail, for which you were 
responsible 1 

Mr. DAY. I don’t know. The thought of opening mail didn’t enter 
into my mind, because I didn’t hear anything about it that I can 
recall. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. To what would this authority on their part have 
related 1 

Mr. DAY. Probably, as I began thinking about it afterward, it prob- 
ably had to do with the extent of the mail covers that the ,CIA mm 
using. That is what I thought later might have been the purpose of the 
visit. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. Yes; but going back to the conversation and why, 
if at all, it made any sense, you previously indicated that you had no 
idea at that time even what a mail cover was. 

Mr. DAY. That is correct. I said afterwards, when I began surmising 
what they might have been coming to talk to me about,, it struck me 
that it was probably mail covers. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. I understand the surmise afterwards. What I am 
concerned about is what kincl of strange conversation this must have 
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been at the t,ime. You have a. specific recollection about a very small 
part of it, the part that indicated that you did not want to know any- 
thing. But what did you talk about ? 

Mr. DAY. I didn’t say it was a very small part of it. I said that there 
was a certain amount of conversat,ion with Xr. Roosevelt and un- 
doubtedly some get-acquainted conversation. I have stated that I do 
not recall the statements tha.t were made as a buildup to the statement 
they wanted to tell me something very secret. But I do recall what 
my reaction was, and I told them I did not Kant to know anything 
about it. 

Mr. SJIOTIIERS. Mr. Day, in your assessment, and with the informa- 
tion that you now have as to the subject matter which would have been 
discussed with you. is it your impression that. you were simply duped 
in this process, or was it, more a case of your saying hear no evil, see 
no evil? 

Mr. D.\Y. Neither one. It wasn’t my responsibility. The CL4 had 
an ent,irely different kind of responsib’llity than I did. And what they 
had to do, they had to do. And I had no control over them. I don’t 
know whether it was clear to me at the time they came to see me, but 
it is clear they did not come to ask me if they could do something; 
they came to tell me it was happening. And that was their responsi- 
bility. I don’t recall over that. 

Nr. SMOTHERS. And it was your view that the CIA could do what- 
ever they wanted to with the mails, and it was your further view that 
you would hope they wouldn’t tell you about it ? 

Mr. DAY. I don’t know if I particularly focused at the time on think- 
ing they could do whatever they wanted to, because I didn’t know the 
various alternatives of things they might be doing. But as I develop& 
more knowledge of the situation-and right now I am not at all sure 
it was illegal for them to open the mail. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. IA me turn to Br. Blount for just a moment. 
Mr. Blount, going back to your meeting with Mr. Helms, is it your 

recollection that at that meeting Mr. Helms discussed the mad of 
specific persons that had been opened? 

Mr. BLOUST. I have seen testimony that t.he name Eldridge Cleaver 
was mentioned in the conversation, and I seem to recall that name 
being mentioned. 

Mr. SMOTIIERS. Did you discuss the contents of Eldridge Cleaver’s 
mail 1 

Mr. BLOUNT. I don’t recall that. 
Mr. SMOTHERS. Did he tell you anything about what the Agency 

might have learned from opening Eldrldge Cleaver% mail? 
Mr. BLOLXT. I don’t recall him talking about opening the mail, Mr. 

Smothers, and I don’t recall his talking about what they had learned 
from it. I recall the name being introduced into the conversation, and 
these were as an example of the kind of mail that would be interrupted. 

Sir. SMOTHERS. Bv example, are you saying that he showed you 
samples of mail that had been opened? 

Mr. RLOUNT. I don’t recall any of that.. I am talking about the 
example of the kind of people whose mail was valuable to interrupt 
as far as the CIA vvas concerned. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. What kind of people are vve talking about? 
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Jfr. BLOCiT. Well. people that were avowed. in my vieK-. at any 
rate-who had rowed they were enemies of this country. 

31~. SMOTIIERS. So if the CIA determined that, someone n-as an 
enemy of the countryV, in your view it was all right for the Agency to 
open the mail ? 

JIr. ~LWST. 1 did not sav anything about opening the mail, Jfr. 
Smothers. I raised the questi’on of the 1egalit.y of the CIA operations. 
This matter was disposed of in my mind by the fact that the Attorney 
General had agreed. or was going to agree, or was going to be briefed 
about this matter, and he would deal with the legality of it. I under- 
stand he had been briefed prior. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. Did you ever speak to t.he Attorney General about 
t.his matter P 

Mr. BLOUNT. I don’t recall a.ny specific conversation with the At.- 
t,orney General. I may well have said something to him in passing. I 
had many conversations with him. I just don% recall. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. Did you ever raise the matter wit.h your counsel at 
the Post Office Department? 

Mr. BLOUNT. I t.alked about, during this meeting, of bringing in the 
counsel of the Post Office Department. And when it was indicated that 
the Attorney General was going to be involved in this? I decided to 
let the Attorney General handle the legality of it. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. In other words, after this briefing, after being told 
effectively that t.he mail of certain persons was being opened- 

Mr. BLOUNT. I don’t recall that., Mr. Smothers. 
Mr. &OTHERS. OK, depending on what impression you drew from 

the conversation regarding Cleaver’s mail, one may or may not con- 
clude that you had such knowledge, but certainly you knew there was 
a CIA project relating to the mails and that the CIA was using this 
as a source to get some kind of information ; you knew that much. 

Mr. BLOUNT. That is precisely what my impression of the meeting 
WBS. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. Did you do anything after this knowledge had come 
to you ? After you had been advised of this much, was there any follow- 
up on your part to find out what the Agency or t,he FBI was doing, or 
what anyone else was doing in this regard? 

Mr. BLOUNT. I don’t recall that. I have seen testimony that I called 
Mr. Cotter who was the Chief Inspector and related the fact that we 
had such a meeting. I don’t recall that conversation. I could well have 
had it. I had many conversations tvith Mr. Cotter, but I simply don’t 
recall it. 

Mr. SMOTHERS. I have nothing further, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator MONDALE. Thank you very much. 
Mr. Blount, according to a memo, which I gather you have seen, 

dated June 3? 19’71. exhibit 4.’ the following is a statement : 
The DC1 then indicated that yesterday, 2 June 1971, he had seen Postmaster 

General Blount. Mr. Blount’s reaction, too, was entirely positive regarding the 
operation and its continuation. He opined that “nothing needed to be done” and 
rejected a momentarily held thought of his to have someone review the legality 
of the operation as such a review would, of necessity, widen the circle of witting 
persons. Mr. Helms explained to the PMG that Mr. Cotter, Chief Postal Inspector, 
has been aware of the operation for a considerable period of time by virtue of 
having been on the staff of the CIA’s New York Field Office. Mr. Helms showed 

1 Seep. 197. 
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the Postmaster General a fen- selected examples of the operation’s product, in- 
cluding an item relating to Eldridge Clearer which attracted the Postmaster 
General’s special interest. 

Would you disagree with an3 part of that memo? 
Mr. BLOIXT. Senator, I don’t recall seeing any document. As to 

Eldridge Cleaver, I do remember the name being introduced into the 
conversation. 

I do not recall any conversat,ion about Mr. Cotter. I simply don’t 
recall it. I mean, it, may well have been in the conversation. Again, I 
donY recall a conversation with Mr. Cotter after this meeting. I have 
seen testimony by Mr. Cotter that I did call Mr. Cotter. I don’t have 
any quarrel with it ; I just don’t recall it. *4nd I don’t recall anything 
in this meeting about Mr. Cotter’s name being ment,ioned or being 
shown any documents. 

Senator MOSD.\LE. Is it your testimony, then, that you do not recall 
being t.old t.hat the mail was opened ? 

Mr. BLOVST. That. is correct. 
Senator MOXDALE. ,4nd further, that you never saw any byproduct 

of such opened mail ? 
Mr. BLOUKT. I don? reca.11 either of those two things, Senator. 
Senator MONDALE. ,4nd that your only inquiry, based on this gen- 

eral discussion with DCI, was in effect asking to be sure t,hat it mas 
legal B 

Mr. BLOUST. In effect, that is correct. 
Senator MosMLE. As I understand your earlier testimony, you did 

so because you thou&t this effort, although not defined for the use of 
the mails, involved the Xation’s security and therefore a higher pur- 
pose that would justify it. 

Mr. BLOUST. I don’t know what you mean by justify, but I under- 
stood that national security was involved, and this was a very sensitive 
project, as far as the CL\ was concerned, and that it was important to 
this country. And my inclination was, and is today, to be fully sup- 
portive as long as this matter was le al. 

Senator MOSD.\LE. ,4s long as it’s egal. f 
Xr. BLOCST. And that’s t.he reason I raised the question of legality. 

-1nd it. was disposed of in my mind by the fact that the Attorney Gen- 
eral \Tas going to be involved in the legality of it. So I thought that the 
General Counsel of the Post Office Department should not be involved 
as long as the Attorney General was going to be involved. 

Senator >\~OSDALE. So you would support any national security ef- 
fort, that, was legal. But in this case? even though you knew it affected 
the operation of your Department and had something to do with the 
mails, you did not ask what it might be or inquire on your own as to 
the legality ; is that correct ? 

3lr. BLOLXT. 3ly recollection, Senator, is that the extent of t.he Post 
Office involvement was to interrupt the mail stream and to turn it over 
to CIA agents who would then turn it back to the postal employees 
the next day. 

Senator MOSDALE. After having read it? 
?tIr. BrAousT. I don’t know what, they did with it, and that, is when 

I raised the question of legality. 
Senator ~IOSDALE. But. you didn’t. ask what they were doing with it, 

either? 
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M~.BLOUNT. I didnot. 
Senator MONDALE. All right. And you didn’t- 
Mr. BLOUNT. I don’t rec.all that,. 
Senator MOSDALE. You might have asked? 
3Ir. BLOUXT. I just don’t recall. I don’t recall any conversat,ion about 

opening the mail. 
Senator MONDALE. But you might have asked. Do you think that you 

did not ask or that. you did ask or that you can’t remember? 
Mr. BLOUXT. I don’t think I ought to speculate as to what. I might 

have asked. I just don’t recall. 
Senator ~LOSDALE. You may or vou may not or you don’t recall ! 
Xr. BLOV~T. I don’t. recall any discussion. 
Senator MOSDALE. In any event, you did not inquire as to the legal- 

ity itself. you inquired, rather. whether they had- 
?tIr. BLOUST. Based on the testimony that Mr. Helms has given to 

others, including this committee, he saw the Attorney General prior 
to coming to me. I have no quarrel with t,hat. I accept the fact that he 
saw him prior to coming to me. I had first thought that he was.going 
to see the Attorney General after our meeting. I accept the testimony 
that he saw him before our meeting, and I am quite certain that he 
said to me that he had briefed the Attorney General and that the At- 
torney General had no problem with this matter and that as far as the 
legality was concerned, that put it to bed, as far as I was concerned. 

Senator MOSDALE. All right. 
Sir. we all take an oath of office-you do, I do, as we go into public 

office-to faithfully uphold and execute the laws of the land. Do you 
feel that this use of the U.S. mail should not have raised your curiosity 
as to what in fact was happening so you would ask those essential ques- 
tions and having asked them, that you had a duty then, under your 
oath of office, to execute the law Z 

Mr. BLOUNT. Well, Senator, just as Mr. Day has testified, I didn’t 
know then. and I don% know now, that what the CIA was doing was 
illegal. 

Senat.or MONDALE. My point is, you did not ask, apparently, and 
having not asked, you did not inquire as to its illegality; I was won- 
dering how that squares with one’s oath of office which requires us to 
faithfully execute the laws of the land. 

Mr. BLOCST. I raised the question of legality. and as far as I was 
concerned, it was settled with the Attorney General dealing with 
the legality of the matter. 

Senator MONDALE. Xow. Mr. Dav, as I understood your testimony. 
Mr. Helms, t.hen the DDP, and Mr. Dulles, came to you and said 
that we have a secret matter to discuss with you affecting the Postal 
Department. And your attitude was. or your statement was, “Do I have 
to know? Because when secrets are known then the disclosures can be 
blamed on the people who knew the secrets.” Therefore, you did not 
want. to know. We have heard a lot of that, not. just in the executive, 
but. in the Congress. 

Maybe if I had been in your position at that time I would have said 
the. same thing. I am not trying to draw moral jud,sments about it. We 
had direct statements of Senators back in the early days, when con- 
fronted with embarrassing information. that they didn’t want to know. 
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Thtlt seems to be the way you dealt with the CIL1 and the FBI 
in those days: “Don’t. tell me,, I don? want to know.‘? Do you think 
that was the right attitude ? 

Mr. D.\Y. I definitely do. As I say, I would do the same thing again. 
I WOUND not agree that it is comparable to embarrassing informat.ion. 
AS I said. I felt the CIA had their own lines of authority and t,heir own 
responsibilit.ies, 
couldn’t do. 

and they were the ones that knew what they 

Senator ~fos~.ux. And so did you. You were the Postmaster General. 
Mr. D.\v. That’s correct. 
Senat,or MOSDALE. You had taken an oath to uphold and faithfully 

execute the laws of the land. Like Mr. Blount.. who didn’t ask the ques- 
tions, you didn’t want, to hear and you wouldn’t ask. 

I don’t want to sound personal, because I think that was the general 
at.titude in those days, but I was \vondering now. in the light of what 
we have seen. the gross illega1it.y that was going on. and the warranted 
opening of mails which was clearly illegal? I don’t think anybody- 

Jr. D.\Y. I disagree with- 
Senator Mosn.~,~. SOV that you know that, do you think that- 
Mr. Dar. I don’t agree that it is clear that it is gross illegality: but 

that is another subject. 
My feeling then and my feeling now is t.hat the CIX had overall 

powers that put them in a different situation than other people, and I 
think act.ually. on the law itself, it. is not at. all clear it was illegal. 

Senator MOSDALE. That. is the first time we have heard that, Mr. Day. 
The law, I think. is very clear. In order to open mail! you have to do 
it under court ~varrant and on the basis of probable cause. Your posi- 
tion is that if you invoke the term national security, you can open 
anybody’s mail. 

Mr. DAY. Sot, just. invoking the term national security, but the CIA 
is am1 always has~been something very different and very special. 

Senator MOSDALE. IYe are both lawyers. I do not. remember reading 
that in the Constitution; maybe you can tell me about that exception 
in the fourth amendment. 

Nr. DAY. There is a specific section of that statute, Title 18, U.S. 
Code, Sect.ion 1717, saving it is illegal to send things through the mail 
that have to do with advocating the overthrow of the Government. And 
up until shortly before- 

Senator MOSDALE. And t’hat is probable cause. In other rvords? if 
you have probable cause- 

Mr. DAP. Well, that is not. in that section. 
Senator MOSD.\LE. If you feel that, somebody is advocating t.he over- 

throw of the Government. you can get a warrant and you can open 
the mail. 

Mr. Dar. That is not in that section I am referring to. What I was 
going to continue, that section I have long since found out, shortly 
before I was Postmaster General that section 1717 had a provision, 
right in the same section about the national security, saying that mail 
should not be opened. And that was stricken out in August 1960 by the 
Congress. 

Senator 3fom.11,~. TYell, I must sxy that the testimony I have just 

heard from you, Mr. Day, and from Jlr. Blount, scares me more than 
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I expected. Not only have we found gross and unconscionable inter- 
ference with the mail which threatens the civil liberties of every Amer- 
ican, but we have the testimony from two former Postmasters General 
that they do not think it is wrong, even today. 

Mr. Gronouski, in your case, you were not told of these openings, 
even though you wanted to know. We now know, from a private 
memorandum of the X1, that it was decided not to tell you. How can 
a Postmaster General who wishes to enforce the law do so in that k-id 
of environment ? 

Mr. GRONOUSKI. Well first- 
Senator MONDALE. And how do we know whether the present Post- 

master General, if desirous of enforcing the law, can be sure such 
abuses are not going on today 4 

Mr. GRONOUSKI. First, Mr. Chairman., if I may I want to disassoci- 
ate myself with the generalization which you opened your remarks 
with that in those’ days it was the general attitude. That was not my 
attitude and I deplore that attitude. 

Senator MONDALE. And I commend you. 
Mr. GRONOUSKI. I think anyone in Government that runs an agency 

has the responsibility of finding anything going on ,in that agency, 
and I am terribly upset that the system is such that what happened 
could happen, because I made every etl’ort to find out what was going 
on in my agency. 

Senator MOSDALE. And I commend you. 
Mr. GRONOUSKI. And I cannot tell you how to do it either. I wish I 

could tell you. 
Senator MOKDALE. Would it be fair to say that you tried, you did 

” - not get the answers, and you now find- 
Mr. GRONOUSKI. The first moment I learned that according to law 

and in accordance with law that the IRS was stopping and holding 
mail, I immediately called the Secretary of the Treasury and, with him, 
agreed to stop it in 1964. I investigated everything involving the mail 
that was humanly possible and if I had any idea that the CIA or any 
other agency was not only opening the mail but delaying the mail, 
I would have, as I did in the case of the IRS, put a stop to it. 

Senator MONDALE. That is why I have always liked John Gronouski. 
If that attitude had prevailed, we would not have had this mess thsat 
we are exploring today, and we would not have had a Watergate, and 
we would not have gone through this tremendous morass of cynicism 
and despair that we have suffered. It is a little simple thing called 
obeying and enforcing the law. And that is what I thought I heard 
and I commend you for it.. 

We have a vote. We suspend the hearings until after we vote. 
[Abrief recess was taken.] 
The CHAIRMAN [presiding]. The hearing will come back to order. 
Between votes and another hearing over which I have had to preside 

this morning, I have missed some of the testimony. I do want to say, 
however, that I have been told of testimony given just before the break 
for the vote by former Postmaster General Gronouski, and I simply 
want to strongly associate myself with the view he expressed. 

Either we are going t,o have a Government of laws in this country 
that is obeyed by all agencies of the Government, or we are going to 
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have the beginning of a slide that could undermine all individual 
liberty in this land. We have to recognize the crossroad and take the 
right road be,fore it is too late. 

Senator MONDALE. Could I ask just one question? 
The Cnar~?rras. Yes. Senator LMondale. 
Senator MONDALE. How does it feel now to know that you were per- 

mitted to represent something to t,he Congress which you t,hen thought 
to be the truth-namely, that it was only mail cover operations and 
nothing else-when, in fact, you have now learned that that was not 
the truth? 

Mr. GROXOUSKI. Well, when I heard it, of course, I was indignant 
and frustrated. ,4nd it poses, I think, the real gut issue of government, 
how you get control of this business. And I thought I had reasonable 
control when I was in the Post Office. I thought I knew what was going 
on. 

Senator MOSDALE. This not only undermines--- 
Mr. GROSOUSKI. Obviously, I didn’t know something very important. 
Senator MONDALE. But more than that, they let you represent some- 

thing to the Congress that you believed to be true but in fact was false, 
thereby misleading the Congress as well. 

Mr. GROXXSKI. Beyond that, I-it meant a great deal-the proposi- 
tion of those around me, not only those I appointed, bat those who had 
been Post Oflice employees before I came there didn’t know about that. 
I may in testimony be dissuaded of that, but I don% think any of the 
people that I dealt with-the Chief Inspector, legal counsel, or the 
Assistant. Postmasters General-had any notion of this. It was not just 
me. It seems to be the whole top staff didn’t know anything about it. 

Senator ,MONDALE. Thank you, Mr. Gronouski. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The CHAIRIPIAS. Thank you, Senator Mondale. 
I believe Senator Schweiker is next. 
Senator SCHREIKER. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
I would like to address a question to all t.hree of you in sequence. My 

question basically concerns this : In listening to your testimonies here 
this morning, I guess you could summarize your three statements wit,h 
three other statements. One would be, I don’t recall. Second would be, 
I don’t want to know. The third would be, I didn’t know t.hey were 
actually opening the mail. 

My question is in two parts. First, what is a Postmaster General for, 
if not. to guarantee the san&.y of the mail? Second, where did the 
responsibility in your particular administration break down 8 

J9r. Day, let, us start with you. What is a Postmaster General for 
if he is not to guarantee the sanct,ity of the U.S. mail? 

Mr. DAY. My main concerns when I was Postmaster General, and 
particularly when I first came in, was to straighten out the very bad 
employee relations in the Department, to attempt to improve service, 
and to improve postal facilities. The law enforcement aspect of the 
Postmaster General’s job is rather a peripheral part of that job. 

Senator SCIIWEIKER. \J7here do you feel your responsibility broke 
down ? 

Mr. Dal-. I don’t think it, did break down at all. 
Senator SCrrwErKER. Now, Mr. Day, how can you say that ? 
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Here we see a case of mail opening unparalleled in American history, 
actually almost falling apart like a sieve. Yesterday we found out that 
one out of every. 13 letters to the Soviet Union was opened, read, photo- 
grsphed, and distributed widely throughout our intelligence agencies. 
And you say your responsibility did not break down ? 

Mr. DAY. Yes. Because, as I have already stated several times, it is 
not clear to me that it was illegal for the CIA to open the mail. 

The CHAIRMAN. It is clear to everybody else, including the CIA. 
Mr. DAY. I say it is not clear to me. 
Senator SCIIWEIKER. It is not clear to you ? 
Mr. DAY. That is correct. 
Senator SCHWEIKER. Are you saying the mail was not opened 8 
Mr. DAY. No, I say it is not clear to me that it was illegal for them 

to open the mail. 
Senator SCHWEIKER. Then you are saying that it really was not 

illegal to open the mail, and I gather you take issue with your own 
postal laws protecting the sanctity of the mail ? 

Mr. DAY. There are more postal laws than the one that has been 
referred to here. I referred to another one, and there are CIA laws, 
and there was a CIA position that existed, particularly when I was 
there, that make it far from clear to me that there was any breakdown. 

Senator SCHWEIKER. If it was not clear to you, and if that was really 
the issue, do you have an opinion in writing from either the Attorney 
General or the General Counsel to you as Post,master ? Would you not 
have had that pursued ? Would you not have nailed that down 1 Would 
you not have asked for a legal opinion if it really was unclear? 

Mr. DAY. I had no occasion to ask for it, Senator. 
Senator SCHWEIKER. Did Mr. Mitchell ever give you an opinion to 

that effect 1 
Mr. DAY. You seem to have me confused with someone else. Mr. 

Mitchell came on the scene long after I had departed. 
Senator SCHWEIKER. Did any of t.he Attorneys General that served 

with you give you an opinion m writing that makes your point valid? 
Mr. DAY. No. I never asked for one. 
Senator SCHWEIKER. Did you not feel it was your responsibility to 

get one? 
Mr. DAY. No. 
Senator SOH~EIKER. Well, we do have a problem, there is no ques- 

tion about that, Mr. Day. 
Let me ask you, Mr. Blount, what is your response as to whether 

the duty of the Postmaster General is to guarantee the sanctity of 
the mail, and where did your responsibility break down Z 

Mr. BLOUNT. Well, Senator, for one, I don’t think my responsibility 
broke down. 

Senator SCHWEIKER. Do you agree with Mr. Day that it is legal 
to open everybody’s mail 1 

Mr. BLOUNT. I don’t know that Mr. Day said that, to begin with. 
Second- 

Senator SCH~EIKER. I am not sure what he said on that point either. 
Mr. BLOUNT. He said, if I understood him, that it wasn’t clear, and 

I did not understand at the time that what the CIA was doing was 
illegal, and I don’t understand that now. 
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I don? intend to engage in a legal dehat,e with you, but-1 am not 
a lawyer. 

Senator SCHWEIKER. Did you get an opinion from your lawyer? 
Did you get, an opinion from Attorney General Mitchell? 

Mr. BI~JNT. Senator, I have testified that I raised the question of 
legality in the meeting I had with Mr. Helms. Mr. Helms told me that 
he had talked to the Attorney General about this, he had briefed him 
on it, and he had no problem with it. 

Now, I had first recollected that he was going to talk to the Attorney 
General, but the evidence indicates that he had talked to him the 
day before he came to see me. And I accept that. I have no quarrel 
with it. It is just a question of what you remember 4 years or more 
ago. 

of 
Now, I think you are dealing with the question, the age-old question, 
citizens’ rights versus national security ; and if I might be so bold 

as to suggest, that this kind of question is best dealt with in an atmos- 
phere different from the one that we are dealing with it today. I think 
it is a difficult question which people of not only good will but great 
sensitivity have varying views about. And it would seem to me that 
one way to proceed on that issue would be to maybe try to construct 
a different atmosphere from this kind of atmosphere-maybe a dis- 
tinguished panel to deal with this question. 

I do not understand, again., that what the CIA was doing WBS 
illegal. I did not understand it at that time. I just do not have an 
understanding about that matter. I raised the question of legality. It 
was disposed of by the fact that the Attorney General was gomg to be 
involved in tha,t, and I had no problem with it.. So I do not think my 
responsibility broke down. 

Senator SCHWEIKER. Are you testifying that Mr. Mitchell told you 
it Kas legal, or sent you anything in writing that said it was legal? 

Mr. BLOUNT. I am testifying that Mr. Helms told me he had talked 
with the Attorney General. And he had no problems with that. 

Senator SCHWEIKER. The Attorney General does not recall that, of 
Course. 

Mr. BLOUNT. I do not know what the Attorney General does recall. 
Senator SCHWEIKER. I can assure you that is what he testified to 

this committee because I took the deposition when he said he did not 
recall that conversation at all. That is where your point stops, right 
there. 

Mr. BLOUNT. You are talking about people who recall a conversa- 
tion, Senator; in my own case, 4 years ago; in Mr. Day’s case, 14 years 
ago. I think that is asking a little bit too much of detailed ‘human 
memory. Everybody can sit up here and make a speech, if they want 
to. But if you are trying t.o get at the facts, I would suggest you try 
to construct an atmosphere where you can deal with these sensitive 
questions of citizens’ rights versus national security. I happen to 
believe that national security is very important in this country. I also 
believe that citizens’ rights are very important, and I think those two 
can be and have been, over the years, reconciled. 

Senator SCHWEIKER. You said that basically the atmosphere today 
is different from t.he time when you were Postmaster General. I would 
not disagree with that. But the one thing that has been constant for 
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200 years is the fourth amendment. That has been pretty clear cut, 
and hopefully it is observed by our own Government. So I think that 
element of stability somehow ought to ‘be with the system, and I 
thought it was. But there is obviously a difference. 

Mr. BLOIJNT. I think it is with the system, Senator. I t.hink that 
some of the time, we get carried away with some things that make 
headlines. They are talking about opening the mail. The mail is 
opened all the time by the Customs Department. It is opened by the 
Dead Letter Department, and this is by law. 

Senator SCHWEIHER. That is a very important distinction, though, 
Mr. Postmaster General-a very important distinction. 

Mr. BLOUNT. Well, as far as I know, the CIA was acting under the 
laws of this land to-- 

Senator SCHWEIKER. But you made no effort to get an opinion or a 
position, even verbally, from anyone who really could give you advice. 
Because certainly, the CIA was not an objective source in this case. 

Mr. BLOUNT. Well, I do not have any comment about that. 
Senator SCHWEIHER. Mr. Gronouski,‘I would like to ask you the 

same question. 
Mr. GRONOUSKI. Well, I felt immediately upon assuming the Post- 

master General’s job, that I had some very serious responsibilities in 
terms of individual rights. I can recall four cases that ensued. One 
had to do with keeping lists-the customs office. In effect, what the 
customs people did was to write to people, and ask them if they 
wanted to receive mail that came from overseas. The people would 
have to sign a card and send it *back, and this developed into quite 
a list. 

I ordered those lists destroyed, because I felt that kind of a list, 
given the fact that people were receiving mail from Russia and what 
have you, might be researchers of universities or what have you? that 
those lists could be used by a McCarthy in Wisconsin-that IS not 
Gene, that is Joe-and I felt that was a serious matter, and one I did 
not want to tolerate. 

I felt that we had been very lax on a second point, on mail coverage; 
that anybody and his brother could authorize a mail cover, and the 
mail covers proliferated extraordinarily-24,000 in 2 years. And I 
put in a new set of regulations a 
brought the subject up, which 9 

ear before the Long committee 
centra 

the right to authorize a mail cover. 
ized in the 15 regional inspectors 

I have already mentioned the fact that when it came to my attention 
that the Attorney General had the capacity to seize mail under court 
order, I objected to that, and arranged with the Secretary of Treas- 
ury-two of them-to stop that procedure, and also suggested legisla- 
tion to change the law in that respect. 

Senator SCHWEIKER. And I want to commend you. 
Mr. GRONOUSXI. I got very concerned on a fourth point, with’how 

we dealt with pornography. I am not a pornographer, but I also think 
that this whole question-I do not say I object to what some people 
call pornography, but I felt it a very serious matter that the Post 
Office Department has been dealing with this. And, in fact, I wrote 
an article very early on in my career as Postmaster General in the 
Yale Law Review-I believe it was the Yale Law Review-explaining 
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my position on t.his, and implemented that, which is essentially that 
the Post Office Departme,nt was not to do any censoring of m&,1 in 
terms of the law. 

These arc four pursuits I can say I pursued actively. I had no 
question in my mind all of the time I was there that not only was open- 

ing mail illegal, except under court order or under a specific statute; 
and second, that delaying the mail was illegal. Sow, I had had the 
impression, up until very recently, that the only thing that involved 
a mail cover was that the postman, when he released his mail, would 
write down a list of return addresses, and who the mail was going to! 
and then proceed to deliver the mail the same day. 

Obviously, there was a failure in my administration, because some- 
thing happened that I did not know about. ,411 I can say is, I diligently 
pursued, and I failed on that score. 

Senator SCHWEIKER. I think, Mr. Gronouski, in your case, your 
record does show that you tried, and tried under very adverse cir- 
cumstances, to do the job. When I was a Congressman, I got letters 
criticizing the position you took on pornography, so indirectly that is 
a compliment to the way that you did protect the sanctity of the mail, 
and I think you deserve some credit for it. 

Mr. Day, you did not want to hear what Mr. Helms told you. In 
view of the fact that you did not know he was going to talk about 
employees of yours performing an action that might be illegal, why 
would you not want to know what your own employees might or mi.ght 
not be doing? 

Mr. DAY. I do not recall Mr. Helms saying anything at all to me. 
Mr. Dulles did all of the talking, so far as I can recall, except the 
conversation with Mr. Roosevelt. But I was told that it was something 
very secret, and it was in reaction to that I said I did not want to 
know about it. I cannot recall having anything said to me that gave 
me any idea about what the specifics of the secret were. 

Senator SCHWEIHER. In your judgment, the word “secret” made it 
right 1: 

Mr. DAY. I did not say that, Senator, or anything close to it. 
Senator SCIIWEIKER. %Xat judgment did you make? 
Mr. DAY. I have already covered that. The CIA, in my opinion, then 

and now, has certain special powers. Naturally, the Congress 1s not 
going to outline in a statute all the possible techniques for carrying 011 
a spying operation. But to me, there was and is a clear indication in 
the whole authorization of the CIA and its whole function that it has 
certain unusual powers. I knew I had no control over those powers. I 
felt it was up to the CIA to take care of what they had to do in t.he 
spying busin&s. 

Senator SCHWEIKER. That is all, Mr. Chairman. Thank you. 
The CHAIRMAS. Senator Huddleston. 
Senator HLYDLESTOS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Gronouski, you indicated that during your tenure as Post- 

master General, that not only were you not advised of the extent and 
nature of the mail opening project, but you did not believe that either 
your General Counsel or the Inspector General of the Post Office 
Department had been advised of it 9 

Mr. GRONO~BI. That \ras and is my belief. I could be dissuaded, 
but that is my belief. 
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Senator HUDDLESTON. That is not the case. with you, Mr. Blount, 
because during your tenure I believe you employed Mr. William 
Cotter as Inspector General ; is that correct ? 

Mr. BLOUNT. As Chief Inspector. 
Senator HUDDLESTON. Mr. Cotter was Chief Inspector of the Postal 

Department. Were you aware at the time that he ‘had been involved 
personally in mail opening projects of the CIA ? 

Mr. BLOUNT. No, I was not. 
Senator HUDDLESTOS. Were you aware at the time that there was 

a secrecy agreement between the CIA and its employees not to reveal 
certain informat.ion to which they were privy ? 

Mr. BLOUNT. I never heard of it until I testified before t.he House 
committee up here earlier this year. 

Senator H~DDLESTON. Were you aware that subsequent to the em- 
ployment of Mr. Cotter, seven ot,her members, former CIA employees, 
four of whom had been involved in and had specific knowledge of 
the mail opening, came into that Department ? 

Mr. BLOUST. I don? believe so. 
Senator HUDDLESTON. You were not aware of that? Did you ever 

discuss with your Chief Inspector the question of the mail openings 
and its nature and propriety $ 

Mr. BLOUNT. Senator, we had many discussions about the operations 
of the postal inspectors, including mail covers, including mail open- 
ings under warrants, including the postal participation in the strike 
force, as it were, assembled to fight organized crime, and the role that 
t.he Post Office played in not only gathering evidence, but evidence 
that led to convict.ions of many people involved in organized crime 
around this country, so that is the kind of thing t.hat I remember that 
we talked about. 

Senator HUDDLESTON. Do you recall how the name of Mr. William 
Cotter came to you as a potential person to fill this important 
position? 

Mr. BLOTJNT. Yes,1 do. 
Senator HUDDLESTON. How did that follow ? 
Mr. BLOUNT. When I first came to the office, I had looked at the 

Post Office Depart.ment. I went over to talk to-prior to being sworn 
in, I was over talking to Mr. J. Edgar Hoover, who was then Director 
of the FBI. I, like Mr. Day, had some question about whether or 
not that kind of operation belonged in t,he Post Office Department, 
and explored the ideas of whether or not it could be transferred out 
of the Post Office Department, and other people fulfill that 
responsibility. 

As I looked at that responsibility, however, I began to ask people 
for recommendations for someone to become the Chief Postal Inspec- 
tor. I got recommendations from people inside the Post Office Depart- 
ment. I got recommendations from Mr. Hoover. I also got some 
recommendations from Mr. Helms. I interviewed a number of these 
people. Mr. Cotter was one of them, and I selected him. 

Senator HUDDLESTON. Now, at the time then that you asked for 
recommendations, you were aware that the FBI and the CIA were 
involved in mail openings or mail surveillance projects that at least 
may have some questionable legality? 



Mr. BLOUNT. Ko, sir, I was not at all. 
Senator HUDDLESTON. I thought that, you just said that you talked 

to Mr. Hoover about the question of whether or not this was something 
that ought to be carried out? 

Mr. BLOUNT. I am talking about the Postal Inspector, the Postal 
Inspector Service being lodged in the Post Office Department itself. 

Senator HUDDLESTOS. I see. 
Mr. BLOUNT. I had some question about whether or not that should 

be lodged in another agency. 
Senator HUDDLESTON. But you had no question as to whether or not 

the projects that the FBI and the CIA were undertaking with the 
mail were legal ? 

Mr. BLOUST. I had no knowledge of that at that point. 
Senator HUDDLESTOS. Did you discuss with Mr. Cotter when you 

interviewed him what his experience was and what type of activity 
he had been involved in Z 

Mr. BL~UNT. I am certain-I don’t recall our conversation, but I 
am certain I discussed with him his experience, what he had been 
doing, what his experience had been. I don’t recall any discussion 
relatmg to the Post Office Department. 

Senator HUDDLESTON. None at all, whether he had any knowledge 
of the workings of the Post Office Department, or what he might be 
required to do as the Chief Inspector 8 

Mr. BL~UNT. Senator? I am quite sure we talked about the postal 
inspectors, and I am quite-1 don’t recall, but I find it pretty logical 
that we would have some knowledge about the postal inspectors. 
I found, after having been in the Post Office Department for a short 
time, that the postal inspectors were a highly qualified and varied group 
of investigators in the U.S. Government, and I’m quite sure we dis- 
cussed the postal inspectors. 

Senator HGDDLESMN. You do not recall his indicating to you any 
knowledge at all about the ongoing projects in New York? 

Mr. BLOUNT. I am quite sure I had no discussions with him about 
that. 

Senator HUDDLESTON. And he did not express to you any concern 
or give you any indication that the fact that he was under a secrecy 
agreement might present some restrictions on him in giving you a 
complete picture of what your own Department was doing! 

Mr. BLOUNT. To my knowledge, I never heard about the secrecy 
agreement before I testified before the House committee earlier this 
year. 

Senator HUDDLESTQN. You did not know he would be prohibited 
from fulfilling his responsibility to you because of an agreement with 
a prevrous agency? 

Mr. BIDJNT. I never heard of a secrecy agreement. 
Senator HUDDLESTON. To what extent does a Postmaster General 

rely on or seek information relating to illegal activities relating to 
the mails from his Chief Inspector? 

Mr. BLOUNT. Well, I think generally they rely on the General Coun- 
sel for that. 

Senator HUDDLESTON. What kind of reports does the (Chief Inspec- 
tor make to the Postmaster General? 
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Mr. BLOUNT. Oh, there are a great number of reports, Senator, a 
great number of meetings. There is a great amount of discussion 
about the kind of activities that the postal inspectors are involved in. 

As far as I was concerned, they were involved in a massive up- 
grading of the postal inspectors, recruiting from colleges for the first 
time and bringing in qualified, highly qualified people, and conducting 
extensive training programs. We had many meetings on all of these 
subjects. 

Senator HUDDLESTON. But when they encountered something they 
considered illegal in the course of performing their duties, you would 
expect them to advise the Postmaster General, would you not? 

Mr. BLOTJNT. Well, there are many times that the Chief Ins ector 
would bring to me matters that not only were illegal, but-you K now, 
the question of security of the mails, the organized crime effort to 
break the mails, and when I got there, there had been an enormous 
amount of stealing from the mails. 

Senator HUDDLESTON. Would you have expected the person you put 
in as Chief Inspector, if he had any reason to have any serious ques- 
tion about the legality of any activity relating to the mail, to at least 
consult with you or the General Counsel or someone? 

Mr. BLOUNT. I’m quite sure we had conversations relating to those 
kinds of matters, from time to time. I don’t recall any specifics. 

Senator HUDDLESTON. You do not recall any incident where he 
came to you and discussed specifically the mail openings by the FBI 
and the CIA? 

Mr. BLOUNT. I never recalled anything about that until Mr. Helms 
came to see me in June of 1971. 

Senator HUDDLESTON. Nothing subsequent to it from your own 
Department 8 

Mr. BLOUNT. I do not have any recollection. 
Senator HUDDLESTON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The CHAIRMAN. I must say that I have found some of the testimony 

this mornin 
First of al P 

both astonishing and unsettling. 
, when you say, Mr. Blount. that, there is lots of mail being 

opened every day in the Post Office Department and cite the opening 
of dead letters and the opening of mail that is opened under court 
orders as examples of letter openings, you certainly do not mean by 
that to imply that lawful mail opening is no different than unlawful 
mail opening, do you? That just because letters are opened, it really 
does not matter whether they are opened in accordance with the law or 
contrary to the law 1 Is that your position ? 

Mr. BLOUNT. I didn’t make any comment about that, Senator. 
The CHAIRMAN. You said quite clearlv you did not understand whv 

this committee was so concerned about this matter beca.use lots of mail 
was being opened all the time. 

Mr. BLOUNT. I don’t recall making that statement that I don’t know 
whv this committee is so concerned, Senator. 

The CHAIRNAN. Well, you certainly conveyed that impression to me 
because you then went on to say that there were lots of letters being 
opened in various ways. 

Mr. BLOUNT. That I did. 
The CHAIRMAN. Well, then. just to clarify the issue, you did not mean 

by that to imply that unlaw-ful opening of the mail was unimportant 
or ought not to be examined? 
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Mr. BLOUNT. I certainly did not, 
The CHAIRMAN. All right. 
Since several of the witnesses, including Mr. Day, said they were un- 

clear about the legality of this CIA mai1 opening program, I think tkt 
that matter should be laid to rest right here and now. As I understood 
your testimony, Mr. Day, you said you w-ere told there was a secret, and 
YOU did not know what the secret was. You did not want to know what 
the secret was. 

I must sa.y, that at,titude has existed in lots of places. It has existed 
in the Congress. When I first came to the Congress, I would hear senior 
RIembers of the Congress who were part of the watchdog committee 
for the CIA make the same statement. They would say, “I don’t know 
what the CIA is doing, and furthermore I don’t want to know.” 

But I suggest to you that if that is the prevailing attitude of the 
men who hold the responsible positions in Government, then we are 
just inviting the very kind of trouble that did in fact ensue, the very 
things that this committee is now charged to investigate. All kinds of 
illegalities and wrongdoing may never have occurred if public officials 
had said, “Yes, it is my responsibility to know what is going on in my 
Department, and even if it is a secret, I want to know about it. I do not 
want to turn my back on it.” 

Do you not think that as Postmaster General of the United States you 
had a responsibility to know what is going on in your Department, 
even though they told you it was a secret 8 

Mr. DAY. No, I didn’t think I had a responsibility to know what the 
CIA was doing. I want to emphasize, Senator, I think there is a big 
difference between Senators on an oversight committee and the Post- 
master General. Senators do have an important oversight responsibility 
in the total Government. I had no power whatever over the CIA. 

The CHAIRMAN. No, you had no power over the CIA, but you did, as 
the Postmaster General, not only have power over your agency, but 
you were charged with the laws of governing the Post Office Depart- 
ment. Those laws clearly made it illegal for first-class mail to be opened, 
and there should not have been any question in your mind about the 
law. 

Let me just cite the la\r on this subject. First of all, there is a statu- 
tory law, 39 U.S.C. 36-23 (d) provides-and I read the pertinent part : 
“No letter of such a class”--being first class-“of domestic origin shall 
be opened except under the authority of a search warrant.” 

That is pretty cIea.r, and then there is the Post Office Department 
regulation, 39 C.F.R. 115.1, and that regulation provides, pursuant to 
the statute, “First-class mail is given absolute secrecy while in our 
custody.” That is pretty clear, too. 

Mr. DAY. Under sections- 
The CHAIRMAN. Let me just continue, and then I will invite any 

comments you would like to make. 
And then there is the decision of the U.S. Supreme Court on this 

question, in the case of the United Sfa,tes v. I7nn Lem’n. It quotes from 
an 1878 decision of the Supreme Court. I happen to refer to this one 
because it is one of the latest decisions of the Court. Let me read the 
Court’s decision on the #question : 

It has long been held that first class mail, such as letters and sealed packages 
subject to letter postage, as distinguished from newspapers, magazines, pam- 
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phlets, and other printed matter, is free from inspection by postal authorities 
rsceljt in the manner 1)rovided by the fourth amendment. 

Then in the 1878 case which established the sanctity of the mail 
and made it subject to the protection of the fourth amendment of the 
Constitution, which is the highest law of the land, the Supreme Court 
said : 

Letters and sealed packages of this kind in the mail are as fully guarded 
from an examination and inspection, except as to their outward form and Keight. 
as if they were retained 1)s the ljartics forwarding them in their OWI~ domiciles. 
The constitutional guarantee of the right of the peol)le to he secure in their 
ljalwrs against unreasonable searches and seizures extends to their l)awrs thus 
clOyp[] agai0st inspwtion wherever they may be. Whilst in the mail, ther can 
only l)e opened and examined under like warrant issued upon similar oath 
or affirmation. 

TI~en, there is a criminal statute which sap, 18 U.S.C. 170% Ob- 
structions of Correspondence, and it says, reading that pertinent 
part : 

Whoever takes any letter or post card or package, opens, secrets, eml1ezzles, 
or destroys. the same shall be fined not more than $2,ooO or imprisoned not 
more than 6 years or both. 

SO it would seem to me that as a Postmaster General of the United 
States each one of you gentlemen were charged \Tith knowing w-hat 
the postal lam-s were, what the Supreme Court had said about the 
Constitution in its guarantees of privacy, and there ought not to have 
been any question about that. I would further suggest that it was not 
your prerogative as a Postmaster General to decide how much au- 
thority the CIA had. You did not even want to know what the secret 
Kas, so horn could you know what they were doing in your Depart- 
ment ? 

But you did have a responsibility, it. seemed to me, to make certain 
that the mail t.hat passed through the Department was being given 
that degree of protection referred to in the laws and the Constitution 
of t,he United States. 

If you take a different view of your responsibility, I invite you 
to express it. 

Mr. DAY. I will not attempt, Senator? to give a long legal argu- 
ment, although I ITTould bet a dollar that> in 18’78 whatever spy agency 
they had was opening mail, but there was not any CIA as such then. 

There is a thing that Mr. Grononski t,ouched on that I think is very 
revealing as to the difference in the atmosphere in which I operated 
from the atmosphere that may have come about subsequently. There 
was still a lot, of McCarthvism in the air and in the Congress when 
I was Postmaster General. The Congress passed a law which said that 
if LOU were the recipient of some open, non-first-class publication 
mall from a Communist country, the Post Ofice couldn’t deliver it 
to you unless first. you sent in a card saying you wanted it. That was 
not something I thought up. That was passed by the Congress. I 
thought it was ridiculous, but that’s the kind of atmosphere in wVllicI1 
I operated.’ 

The CHAIRMAX. I recognize that, but let us dralr the distinction, 
Hmever foolish the lava may have been, you were obliged to comply 

’ fib. .DQ requested that the committee include in thr record an addition to his remarks 
Concernln!Z the CIA’s mail opening wogram. These hare been appended at p. 259. 
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with it because it had been enacted by the Congress, and it was part 
of the law of the land. That law, incidentally, was later declared un- 
constitutional quite properly. 

But t.his is quite a different matter. We are talking about mail open- 
ings which are contrary to the law. Now, let us not confuse this issue 
by saying that there may be some inner sanctum t.hat exists within 
the intelligence community that can decide that it has greater author- 
ity or higher aut.hority or need not attend the laws of the land, a very 
dangerous and pernicious doctrine for anyone who wants to see a free 
society preserved. But we do not even have that issue here, t,hat notion 
which seems to have grown in so many minds, that the CIA can do 
what it pleases because it is charged with national security, t.he laws 
to the contrary, the Constitution to the contrary, notwithstanding, 
because me have plain evidence-ven t.he intelligence agencies recog- 
nize that what they were doing was unlawful. They did not contend 
that what they were doing complied with the law. 

When the agencies got together and made a special report to the 
President of the United States recommending that he approve certain 
unlawful actions, which later became known as the Huston f lan- 
which President Nixon did approve and then rescinded 5 days ater- 
they referred to the opening of the mail in this fashion and in their 
own report, signed by J. Edgar Hoover, Director of the FBI ; Mr. 
Helms, Director of the (X4; General Bennett, the Director of the 
Defense Intelligence Agency; ,4dmiral Gayler. the Director of the 
National Security agency. These are the top spokesmen for the entire 
intelligence community. What do they say about it,? 

They say: “This coverage, not having the sanction of the law, runs 
risk of an illicit act, magnified by the involvement of a Government 
agency .” 

So there was not anybody anywhere who pretended that this was 
lawful, and I would suggest to you gentlemen that as Postmasters 
General of the United States charged with seeing that the law of the 
land is recognized in connection with the delivery of the mail, you 
had some responsibility to irquire about secrets in your agency. When 
you were told about t,his practice, you had some responsibility to 
determine whether or not it was legal by referring it to the proper 
authorities and obtaining from t.hem the proper kind of opinion, and 
your failure to do so, in my judgment, was a serious omission. 

We will question Mr. Helms. As we try to get the whole story pieced 
together, we will question others as to why each of you was not told 
the particulars of this operation. But that does not excuse each of 
you from the duty to make certain that the Post Office Department 
was being operated in conformity to the laws and the Constitution 
of the country. 

Mr. Mondale P 
Senator MONDALE. Sir. Blount. would you agree that the CIA had 

a duty to tell you that they were opening mail? 
Mr. RLOUNT. Gee, I don’t know, Senator, what the responsibilities 

of the CIA are. 
Senator MOXDALE. So ~OLI do not know whether they had a respon- 

sibility to tell you or not.. 

Mr. I~ILK-NT. No, I don’t know whether they do or not. 
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Senator MONDALE. So, the Postmaster General does not have the 
duty to ask the CL4, and the CIA may not have the duty to tell the 
Postmaster General. How then does anybody faithfully execute the 
law? 

Mr. BLOUST. I raised the question of the 1egalit.y of this matter 
and just to be specific about what I recall of our conversation, as far 
as the postal employees are concerned, I an-well, let me back up- 
I do not understand the postal employees had any mvolvemenf in this 
matter except to turn certain mail that. was going to the Soviet Union 
over to the CIA and the next day carry it on. 

Senat,or MONDALE. That was not somet.hing you asked about. That 
wa.s just something you assume, you have indicated. 

Mr. BLOUNT. No, that% not correct. That VRS something I was told. 
Senator MONDALE. By the CL4 Z 
Mr. BLOUNT. By Mr. Helms. 
Senator MONDALE. So the postal officials and employees had no 

knowledge or complicity whatsoever with the mail opening func- 
tions of the CIA P 

Mr. BLOUNT. My understanding was absolutely that the postal em- 
ployees were not involved in anything but turnmg the mail over to 
the CIA, and this operation was going on in New York. 

Senator MONDALE. And that was based upon what Mr. Helms told 
you 1 

Mr. BLOUNT. That was my only knowledge about it. 
Senator MONDALE. Did you inquire yourself, through your Depart- 

ment, whether that was true? 
Mr. BLOUNT. I don’t recall any other conversations about t,his matter. 
Senator MONDALE. You accepted Mr. Helms’ xvord that that was t.he 

case ? 
Mr. BLOUNT. That is all I know about the issue. 
Senator MONDALE Mr. Blount, you said earlier that you think it 

would have been preferable to discuss this matter in a different en- 
vironment, with a difierent approach. Could you describe what you 
think is the appropriate way the requirement in this matter should 
have been worded ? 

Mr. BLOUNT. I was addressing myself to the question of the matter 
of individual citizens’ rights W~SL~S national security. I said that I 
didn’t have any magic suggestion in that regard. I suggested it is a 
question of the most serious nature and a question of the nature that 
is most or better dealt with in an atmos here where serious scholars 
or people that have knowledge or views a Eo ut this matter can sit down 
and debate these issues away from the public glare, and try to come 
up with some suggest.ions that might be useful to the Congress in 
guiding the enactment of the laws that deal with these problems. 

Senator MONDALE. In these public hearings, we are trying to deter- 
mine issues of accountability and whether the law has been violated, 
in this case with mail openings. Do you think that public hearings of 
this kind are improper? 

Mr. BLOUNT. No; that was not my point at. all, Senator. 
Senator MONDALE. Do you think they are desirable. 
Mr. BLOUNT. I think sometimes public hearings in the light of the 

glare of publicity, in matters that are headline grabbing, can go too 
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far. I think that the question of national security is a. major question 
for this country, as is the question of individual citizens’ rights. 

Senat.or MOSD.\LE. Do you think the hearings today were proper 
and desirable Z 

Mr. BLOUNT. Well, I have testified to this committee in August the 
same things I testified today, no different. 

Senator MOND.\LE. The only difference is t.hat it is in public and the 
reason for that--- 

JIr. BLOVNT. The only reason it wasn’t public vvas because the Sen- 
ate committee decided it not to be as far as I was concerned. 

Senator MOSDALE. That is correct. But what I am trying to get at 
is t.hat I thought you doubted the propriety of public hearings on this 
matter. But I gather from what you say, you do not.. 

Mr. BLOOTNT. That was not the question I was raising. 
Senator MONDALE. So you consider these hearings to be proper and 

desirable? 
Mr. BLOUNT. I don’t know that I have an opinion about that. If 

it is helpful to the Senate: I t,hink that is usefu 4 . 
Senator Jlosnar,~. You will not say it is desirable? 
Mr. kors~. Well. I don’t know whether it’s desirable or not. 
Senator MONDALE. That is what I said, you will not say it is 

desirable. 
Mr. ISr,orST. I think there have been plenty of hearings that were 

not clesirable. 
Senator MOSDALE. I am talking about this one. 
Mr. BLOUST. I don’t have any quarrel with this one at all. I just 

testified to the same thing I testified before. 
Senator MOXDALE. Thank you. 
Senator HUDDLESTOS. Mr. Chairman? 
The CIIAIRX~. Senator Huddleston? 
Senator HVDDLESTOS. Just one brief statement, Mr. Chairman. It 

seems to me that what we encounter here today is very similar to what 
we have seen in many instances. Perhaps one of the most significant 
differences between our system of government and some others is that 
we believe that Government can break the law and it and all of its 
agencies are potential law breakers that should be held accountable 
when they do. 

But we cannot hold them accountable if we have a procession of 
people who are charged with certain responsibilities that do not take 
the time and the trouble to find out whether or not what the govern- 
ment might be doing is legal or illegal, even when there is a substantial 

R 
uestion raised in the minds of many people about the le al status of 

t. ese % government activities. It seems that no matter w at kind of 
laws we might pass, if we do not have this interest. and this effort by 
people in responsible positions to at least ascertain and make sure 
that this determination is made to the best and the fullest extent POS- 
sible, whether or not the law is being broken, then our law becomes 
ineffective and our citizens’ rights are infringed upon. Furthermore, 
those rights are not protected in the way that those charged with the 
responsibility of protecting them should see that they are. 

And we have had witnesses say time and time again, during the 
entire course of this hearing, concerning the matter of individuals 



68 

in high positions all the way down to the low-level operatives that are 
implementing programs, that we, just assumed that because so and so 
said this was the policy of the country that it was proper and legal. 
~1nd we carried out those instructions without question. I think that 
therein lies much of the problem that we have encountered in going 
too far, going beyond the charter. going bevond the law iii carrving 
out what people perceive to be their rrsponsitiilitp and thereby infrkq- 
ing on t.he rights and privileges of the citizens of this country. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The CIIAIRJL\S. Thank you, Senator Huddleston. I have no further 

questions. I xxiit. to thank you gentlemen for your testimony. 
Mr. REILLY. ,Mr. Chairman, I know the rule prohibits the comscl 

to ask questions, but would you and Senator Mondale and Senatoi 
Huddleston-Senator Schweiker has left the room-but mav I have 
an opportunity to make some observations for 1 or 2 mini& that I 
might hare? 

The CHAIRJI.\S. Are you counsel ? 
Mr. RJXLLY. For Jlr. Day. 
I am James Francis Reilly and I served nndcr all three of these 

gentlemen in ~1’0 hono pub7ico. 
The CIIAIRXAS. Do you desire to testify as a witness and be sworn? 
Mr. REILLT. I mill do anything I want so I can make my obser- 

vations. 
The. Crr.\~nar.\s. You can malw your observations. 
Mr. REILLY. I will testifi. 
The CIL~IRMAN. You &ll have to put under oath and be heard as 

a witness. 
Mr. &xi,r~I-. That’s all right. that’s perfectly all right. 
The Crr.~rnx.~s. Xr. Day. I think you should stag if your lawyer is 

going to testify. 
Mr. D&\l-. I will stay behind him and adrise him. 
Mr. R.EII,L~. That doesn’t sa)- I will accept it. 
The CH.URM.~S. If the other gentlemen will withdraw and if you 

will take the oath, please. 
Do you swear that all the testimony you are sbo;k to give in this 

proceeding will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the 
truth. so help you God? 

Mr. REILLY. I do. 

TESTIMONY OF JAMES REILLY, SR., COUNSEL FOR J. EDWARD DAY 

JIr. REILLY. 3Ir. Chairman and Senators. the observation I want 
to make : 40 years ago on October 12, I was admitted to the bar in the 
District of i’oliunbia. I hare been in all phases of the Ian- and even 
today in retirement-you’ve got a young man on your staff who knows 
something about this, JIr. I+yley. 

I try cases, I hare been 111 all the courts and I was privileged to 
be a member of the Post Oflice ,1drisory Board by appointment- of 
President Kennedy and I resigned in l!X4 and n-e wrote two reverts. 
I think roll ought to kno\v-now this is not a trial. I mlderstnn~l that-- 
and in talking about memory, when I went to a little school. Jlolmt 
Saint JZnrv’s up where. 3Tother Seton is now buried in that RIPX. 
founded il; 1808: I claim it’s the first Catholic college. Gtorgetown 
disagrees. 


